



# AIR-POLISHING SYSTEM

···· OPERATING PROCEDURES

# OPERATING PROCEDURES FOR USING THE COMBI *touch* AIR-POLISHING SYSTEM

Adjunct professor Gianna Maria Nardi Research fellow, Sapienza University of Rome Director of 1st-level Master degree course on "Advanced technologies in Oral Health Science", Sapienza University of Rome

I would like to offer my special thanks to Dr. Nicolò Rosano for the contribution of the investigations based on his dissertation for the 1st-level Master's course "Advanced technology in Oral Health Science" –Sapienza University of Rome



## 

The personalisation of clinical dental treatment lies at the basis of good clinical practice and advanced technologies must favour the philosophy of an approach that is defined tailor-made (Nardi et al. 2014). The choice of the most appropriate technology for each individual clinical case is the prime objective of the tailor-made approach, in which the dentist carefully observes the patient's anatomical and tissue characteristics, the presence of any disease, the characteristics of the surface to be treated, allowing effective and minimally invasive operations to be performed and thus the decision to be taken together with the patient.

Air-polishing is an absolutely indispensable procedure in an oral cavity decontamination treatment, at the basis of every primary, secondary and tertiary preventive dental therapy.

My clinical experience confirms what scientific evidence has demonstrated since 1984: the air-polishing procedure is the most effective and efficient system for mechanically removing bacterial biofilm and stains from the tooth and root surfaces (Weaks et al. 1984).

Gianna Maria Nardi

## 

## ···· CONTENTS

1.	Air-Polishing 1.1 Introduction	
	1.2 The air polishing systems	6
	1.3 COMBI touch	7
	1.4 Operating method	9
	1.5 Safety for the patient and the operator	12
2.	The powders	14
	2.1 Sodium bicarbonate	14
	2.2 Glycine	15
3.	Supra- and subgingival air-polishing: operating procedures	17
	3.1 Healthy patients and/or patients receiving cosmetic treatment	17
	3.2 Periodontal patients	19
	3.2.1 Before root planing to remove residues of plaque	20
	3.2.2 After root planing	20
	3.2.3 In supportive therapy	20
	3.3 Child patients	23
	3.3.1 Cleaning occlusal grooves before sealing	23
	3.3.2 Removing plaque before topical fluoroprophylaxis	23
	3.3.3 Removing the plaque detector after motivation and/or plaque index	24
	3.4 Orthodontic patients	26
	3.4.1 Cleaning the tooth surface prior to orthodontic treatment (before fixing thebrackets)	26
	3.4.2 Removing plaque during teeth cleaning sessions	
	3.5 Patients with systemic diseases	
	3.6 Smokers	27



	3.7 Implant patients	27
	3.7.1 Removing plaque from prostheses on implants	28
	3.7.2 In peri-implantitis	28
	3.8 Polishing removable prostheses	29
4.	Conclusion	29
5.	References	30

# **1. AIR-POLISHING**

#### **1.1 INTRODUCTION**

Air-polishing can be used on healthy patients as an alternative to the use of curettes, scalers or abrasive paste to remove ugly stains caused by tea, coffee, red wine, tobacco or other staining substances. In addition, the diseases of the oral cavity with the greatest epidemiological significance (caries, gingivitis and periodontitis) are induced by bacterial biofilms. Mechanical control of bacterial biofilms is fundamentally important in the prevention and management of these diseases. Air-polishing has been found to be effective in removing biofilms from above and below the gums and acquired dyschromia (Europerio 2012, Vienna).

#### **1.2 THE AIR-POLISHING SYSTEMS**

The air-polishing systems use compressed air, water and various types of powder with different particle sizes, specifically designed for different treatments, to emit a well-controlled jet, which sprays particles at the surfaces of the teeth (Barnes et al, 2004).



The abrasive flow therefore consists of:

- Water
- Compressed air
- Specific powders with a controlled particle size

(Black R. Technique for non-mechanical preparation of cavities and prophylaxis. J Am Dent Assoc 1945; 32:955-965).

Currently available on the market, there are numerous devices with an air/water jet for preparing cavities, polishing tooth surfaces and eliminating extrinsic stains in patients that have trouble maintaining adequate oral hygiene (Kozlovsky et al. 1989; Horning et al. 1987).

In addition, the shape and design of the spray nozzle are important characteristics



that may influence the abrasive properties of the powders used.

In fact, minor changes in the size of the nozzle, such as the diameter of the opening or the length of the tube or its curvature may cause significant changes to the efficacy of the instrument (Momber A, 2008).

This factor underlines the importance and responsibility of having an in-depth knowledge of the instrumental technique used on any type of tooth or root surface. When making the determination as to how to treat each specific case, the operator may be faced with the challenge of excess deposits which require removal. In such cases, the more difficult treatment areas will certainly require a more thorough and lengthy treatment. It is therefore important to avoid directing the jet directly at the edge of the gums, on the necks of exposed teeth and on the mucosa.

#### 1.3 COMBI touch

COMBI *touch* combines in a single device a multifunctional piezoelectric scaler and a jet polisher, designed for a complete dental prophylaxis, above and below the gums. The polisher supports the use of two types of powder according to the type of treatment to be performed: sodium bicarbonate powder for supragingival prophylaxis, and glycine-based powder for subgingival treatment.

The operating principle of the polisher is based on the mechanical

action obtained from a jet of crystals of various kinds accelerated by a compressed air flow. The kinetic energy applied to the particles is dissipated almost completely when they strike the enamel surface, producing a gentle but effective cleaning action.

The action is completed by a water jet, which, using the pressure drop created around the nozzle, is arranged in the form of a bell around the main flow, thus producing a dual effect: it largely prevents the cloud of powder from bouncing and being expelled

and continually washes the treated area by dissolving the powder. The device has 3 different spray nozzles with different angles and dedicated periodontal subgingival tips.

#### AIR-POLISHING OUTSIDE THE PERIODONTAL POCKET:

#### 120° SPRAY NOZZLE



Indication: supra- and subgingival (universal)

*Powders:* sodium bicarbonate glycine

ſ	

90° SPRAY NOZZLE

*Indication:* supragingival (designed for anterior areas), occlusal surfaces

*Powders:* sodium bicarbonate glycine



#### AIR-POLISHING INSIDE THE PERIODONTAL POCKET

#### PERIODONTAL SPRAY NOZZLE WITH PERIODONTAL SUBGINGIVAL TIP



Indication: subgingival treatment (pockets > 5 mm)

*Powder:* glycine





#### **1.4 OPERATING METHOD**

The COMBI *touch* device operates at a working water pressure of 1 to 6 bars and an input air pressure of between 4 and 8 bars ("Prophy" function = 3.5 bars; "Perio" function = 2.7 bars). The direct jet should not be directed at the gums while the peripheral jet can be used close to the gingival margin.

COMBI *touch* air-polishing produces excellent hygienic and cosmetic results: it removes

even the most stubborn extrinsic stains quickly, gently and under conditions of absolute safety.

The enamel surfaces of the teeth remain intact and shiny. When used below the gums, it removes bacterial biofilms from the periodontal and peri-implant pockets.

The abrasive nature of the jet of powder is directly proportional to the selected level of irrigation. In this way, by increasing the level of irrigation, at the end of the treatment the teeth above the gums can also be cleaned.

We recommend exclusive use of the Mectron Prophylaxis Powder and Mectron Glycine Powder. The manufacturer declines all liability and the guarantee becomes null and void if non-original Mectron powders are used, in that they could irreparably damage the spray nozzles and/or handpiece of the polisher, thus jeopardizing the operation and creating a risk of injury to the patient.

With the supra- and subgingival technique, the spray nozzle of the instrument must be kept constantly rotating at a distance of 4-5 mm from the tooth surface for about 5 seconds per tooth.

For maintenance treatment, the instrument should be held at an angle of incidence of between 30 and 60 degrees between the powder jet and the axis of the tooth; the correct angle of the handpiece is essential to avoid damaging the soft tissues and to reduce the quantity of aerosol emitted (Barnes, 1991; Worrall et al, 1987).

The Mectron Combi *touch* offers 3 spray nozzles at different angles to allow the operator the ability to customize the operating procedures according to every clinical need.

#### 

#### A. 120° SPRAY NOZZLE FOR USE OUTSIDE THE PERIODONTAL POCKET:



The use of the spray nozzle at this angle provides an effective deplaquing action, primarily in cases in which the operator encounters difficulties due to particular anatomical structures of the soft tissues and positioning of teeth or prostheses that are difficult to reach. For healthy gum tissue and

particularly stubborn stains, the use

of sodium bicarbonate powder is recommended. In the presence of metal-free prostheses, implants, exposed root surfaces and in mouths with a thin tissue biotype, use should be made of the glycine powder. This spray nozzle is also capable of deplaquing subgingival



surfaces with glycine powder for periodontal pockets with a depth of up to 5 mm.

#### B. 90° SPRAY NOZZLE FOR USE OUTSIDE THE PERIODONTAL POCKET:



Used for deplaquing the surfaces of the front teeth using sodium bicarbonate or glycine powder is recommended, with the advantage or preserving the soft tissues of the gums. It is also used for cleaning the occlusal surfaces of permanent teeth

with sodium bicarbonate powder or the

occlusal surfaces of deciduous molars with glycine powder. Ideal for treating acquired dyschromia, as in the case of stubborn tobacco stains, with sodium bicarbonate powder.





#### C. PERIODONTAL SPRAY NOZZLE FOR USE INSIDE THE PERIODONTAL POCKET:



Ideal for effective detoxification in the presence of periodontal pockets with a depth of over 5 mm using the sterile, disposable periodontal subgingival tip, which enables the inside of the pocket to be cleaned in a minimally invasive manner.

In addition, its 120° angle enables the operator

to work under more favourable ergo-

nomic conditions with the correct supporting points, without applying stress to the carpal tunnel.

The tip does not emit the jet in the apical direction but orients it sideways towards the root surface and the wall of the pocket, preserving the integrity of the junctional epithelium.



Having determined the clinical indexes, if a site with a pocket having a depth of over 5 mm is found during the examination, the periodontal subgingival tip should be applied to the PERIO spray nozzle, ensuring that it is fully inserted so that the two

parts must be in contact with one another.

During the decontamination of the periodontal pocket with glycine powder, the tip is to be inserted gently inside the pocket, against the root surface to be decontaminated, making extremely light and regular forward and backward movements. A time of about 5-10 seconds of spraying is necessary to satisfactorily detoxify a periodontal pocket (mesial, distal, vestibular and lingual surfaces). Consequently, it will take about 20-40 sec. for the instrument to clean a single tooth.

Air-polishing below the gums should be performed with glycine powder only!



## 1.5 SAFETY FOR THE PATIENT AND THE OPERATOR:

For the operator:

Put on:

- Mask
- Visor/glasses and/or magnifying glasses
- Bouffant/cap
- Gloves

For the patient:

• Preoperative rinse with antibacterial mouthwash for about 30 seconds if it is a mouthwash with essential oils, or 2 rinses with CLX 0.2% for 60 seconds, so as to lower the bacterial load and reduce the risk of transport of bacteria in the aerosol.\*1

• Take care to preserve the lingual mucosa and the ducts of the parotid salivary gland.

• Apply lubricant to the lips to prevent the sodium bicarbonate from causing dehydration and abrasion during the procedure.

• Use swabs or gauze to protect the soft tissues of the cheeks.

• A mouth mirror/aspirator (ClasenUNO) should be used to prevent the powder jet from passing through the spaces between the teeth and reaching the mucosa of the cheeks, tongue, palate or floor of the mouth.

• Particular attention should be paid to avoid irritating the floor of the mouth, the soft palate and the pharynx.

• The fine particles of powder may enter the eyes and beneath contact lenses, so the patient should preferably wear protective glasses during treatment.

- A retractor should be used to increase the operator's view.
- A surgical aspirator with a broad tip should be used \*2



\*1 It is known that the spraying of powders using supra- and subgingival air-polishing devices produces an abundant jet of water and powder containing oral microorganisms and residues; consequently, as for all aerosols, there is an increased risk of contamination.

\*2 A study conducted at the Baylor College of Dentistry in 2004 by Harrel and Molinari demonstrated the importance of using a high-speed aspirator, equipped with a broad tip and positioned in the direction opposite to the jet, as close as possible to the nozzle: the saliva aspirator is not sufficient to reduce the number of bacteria in the aerosol (Harrel & Molinari, 2004).



# 2. THE POWDERS

Sodium bicarbonate and glycine are the most commonly used powders, but other less known powders are documented in the literature.

Powders with different compositions, particle sizes and applications are available on the market. The choice depends on the device used, the operator's preference, the type of deposit and the medical contraindications. We recommend exclusive use of Mectron prophylaxis powder and glycine powder with the COMBI *touch* device.

#### 2.1 SODIUM BICARBONATE

From an analysis of the scientific literature available, it emerges that sodium bicarbonate is a salt composed of sodium ions and bicarbonate ions which, at room temperature, is a white crystalline powder. Its ability to react with acids enables the sodium bicarbonate to be used in pharmaceutical preparations as a mild antacid. It is also used in the formulation of toothpastes for its whitening abrasive action. Sodium bicarbonate powders have been used in dentistry since 1980 in special air/water jet devices for removing bacterial biofilms and extrinsic stains. Sodium bicarbonate particle size of < 150  $\mu$ m and these crystals have a rectangular and/or square chiselled form.



Bicarbonate crystals with 100x enlargement (image provided by courtesy of 3M Espe))



Sodium bicarbonate effectively removes bacterial biofilms above the gums (Barnes CM et al, 1990) and stains on the enamel surface without any changes or significant loss of substance (Kovacevic R, 1992). However, it is important to consider that sodium bicarbonate is to be used with care on dentin and radicular cement in case of demineralization of the enamel as major abrasion and loss of healthy tissue may occur (Kontturi-Narhi V. et al, 1990; Schiffner U, 1992). The treatment of decontamination with bicarbonate powder is to be personalized on the basis of the anatomical structure of the dental arch and the clinical needs of each patient.

#### 2.2. GLYCINE

Glycine is an amino acid, the first to be isolated from sugar cane in 1820 by Braconnot (La Rousse Enciclopedia Rizzoli, 1964). Glycine can also be obtained by hydrolysis from isinglass, gelatin, or silk fibrin. Due to its properties, glycine is used during oral hygiene treatments using supra- and subgingival air-polishing devices to remove bacterial biofilms, mild extrinsic stains and to detoxify periodontal pockets.

Glycine powders have a particle size of less than 25  $\mu$ m (D50) and are currently used in various countries in non-surgical clinical dental practice. Glycine is recommended in the following clinical indications:

Removal of plaque	٢	٢
Removal of stains	٢	<u>e</u>
Use on enamel	٢	٢
Use on restoration materials	8	۲
Use on dentin	8	۲
Use on the root surface	8	۲
Use below the gums	8	<b>e</b>
Cleaning of grooves	٢	<b>e</b>
Cleaning of the prosthetic margin	٢	۲
Cleaning of the surfaces of the imp	olant 😕	۲

This powder is also indicated for patients with systemic diseases or on low-salt diets, such as patients with hypertension and kidney failure, in whom the use of sodium bicarbonate is contraindicated. It is also minimally invasive on radicular cement, enamel, dentin and exposed implants, for which natural glycine powder with a low particle size ( $d_{50=25} \mu m$ ) should be used.

Decontamination treatment with glycine powder should be personalized for every clinical need and type of patient with the advantage that it can be used for frequent recalls.



*Glycine powder with 100x enlargement (image provided by courtesy of 3M Espe)* 



# 3. SUPRA- AND SUBGINGIVAL AIR-POLISHING: OPERATING PROCEDURES

# 3.1 HEALTHY PATIENTS AND/OR PATIENTS RECEIVING COSMETIC TREATMENT

The air-polishing technique is extremely effective and minimally invasive compared to the selective polishing technique with silicon cups and/or tooth brushes, in that it is easier to use, quicker and above all, capable of removing more stubborn stains, such as those caused by tobacco and chlorhexidine more effectively.

Sodium bicarbonate has a greater cleaning power than glycine and is thus the gold standard for removing extrinsic stains.



Removal of extrinsic stains by air-polishing with sodium bicarbonate

Glycine powder should be used for less stubborn stains, in the presence of exposed root surfaces or a thin tissue biotype. In fact, glycine powder does not damage the mucosa and the jet can even be directed at the neck of the tooth to remove stains closer to the gum without damaging the basement membrane of the epithelium of the gingival groove without any pain or discomfort for the patient. Due to the flexibility of the new COMBI *touch* device, the sodium bicarbonate and glycine powders can be used at the same time.

#### 

#### CLINICAL CASE



clinical observation



deplaquing posterior area with 90° spray nozzle and bicarbonate powder



deplaquing occlusal surface with 90° spray nozzle and bicarbonate powder



deplaquing posterior area with 90° spray nozzle and bicarbonate powder



deplaquing occlusal surface with 90° spray nozzle and bicarbonate powder



.....

final result



## 3.2 PERIODONTAL PATIENTS

For a minimally invasive deplaquing procedure also on recessions and exposed root surfaces, use is made of a 120° spray nozzle with glycine powder. If, from the clinical point of view, the patient presents major acquired dyschromia (e.g. tobacco stains), the 90° spray nozzle with sodium bicarbonate powder should be preferred. With the supra- and subgingival technique in the presence of pockets with depth of less than 5 mm, the spray nozzle of the instrument should be kept constantly rotating at a distance of 4-5 mm from the surface for about 5 seconds for each tooth. If, during the examination, the site is found to present a periodontal pocket with depth of over 5 mm, the sterile and disposable periodontal subgingival tip will have to be applied to the PERIO spray nozzle, positioning the nozzle against the surface of the tooth. It will take about 5-10 seconds of spraying to satisfactorily detoxify a periodontal pocket (mesial, distal, vestibular and lingual surfaces).

The periodontal subgingival tip does not emit the jet in the apical direction, but orients it sideways towards the surface of the root and the wall of the pocket, preserving the



Diagram of use in periodontal pockets < 5 mm

integrity of the junctional epithelium.

Its thin tip enables it to pass gently along the surface of teeth and be inserted inside narrow pockets and moved along the root surfaces of adjacent teeth. It is to be inserted inside the periodontal pocket and directed parallel to the root of the tooth.

Treatment areas that are difficult to reach with other instruments, such as distal to the molars,

may be treated easily with the 120° spray nozzle with glycine powder. Due to its precise angle, this nozzle ensures proper decontamination of these sites, which often involve exposed root surfaces. If a radicular furcation is discovered after exploration with a Nabers probe, we recommend the use of the periodontal subgingival tip, which ensures delicate entry into the furcation due to its unique anatomical shape.



Decontamination with periodontal subgingival tip

#### 3.2.1 BEFORE ROOT PLANING TO REMOVE PLAQUE RESIDUE

It is always best to work on surfaces of the mouth not contaminated by bacteria. At times, it happens that even strongly motivated patients are not capable of obtaining effective bacterial film control. Consequently, before proceeding to plane the roots, it is important to decontaminate sites using the air-polishing technique with a 120° spray nozzle and glycine powder. This operation performed before the examination avoids the risk of bacterial transmigration.

#### 3.2.2 AFTER ROOT PLANING

After the root planing operation, air-polishing with glycine powder and a 120° spray nozzle can be useful to remove residue left by manual or ultrasonic instruments, thus increasing the detoxification of the root surfaces. It should be pointed out that this procedure does not remove any hard deposits that remain inside the pocket and for explorations to a depth of more than 5 mm, use should be made of the sterile, disposable periodontal subgingival tip.

#### 3.2.3 IN SUPPORTIVE THERAPY

In this case, use should be made of the 120° spray nozzle. Once the initial treatment has been performed with sessions of root planing, the patient should be scheduled for maintenance therapy or supportive periodontal therapy (SPT). The patient follow-up sessions must be monitored, with the recalls personalized according to the patient's clinical needs, for the efficacy of his/her home bacterial plague control (Protocollo di tailoring personalizzato e condiviso - Nardi et all. 2014), (Wilkins EM, 1999) and following the indications of the clinical protocols (Genovesi A et al, 2004). The removal of the aetiological agents above and below the gums is greatly favoured by air-polishing with glycine powder. This technique eliminates the need for curettes, is painless, requires no particular operating skills, is effective to a pocket depth of 5 mm, is completed extremely quickly (about a quarter of the time required by the traditional method, Petersilka GP et al, 2003) and mechanically detoxifies the root surface. In pockets greater than 5mm with inflammation, the periodontal subgingival tip is recommended. If the mouth is affected by major acquired dyschromia, use should be made of bicarbonate powder with the 90° spray nozzle, ideal for effective decontamination of grooves and dimples on the occlusal surfaces of molars and premolars.



#### CLINICAL CASE



clinical observation



determination of clinical plaque and bleeding indexes



deplaquing with glycine powder and a 90° spray nozzle



topography of the presence of bacterial biofilms using erythrosin-based three-tone plaque detector



periodontal debridement with a Mectron S1 insert



periodontal examination with location of pocket having a depth of over 5 mm

#### ---> SUPRA- AND SUBGINGIVAL AIR-POLISHING



insertion of subgingival tip in pocket with a depth of over 5 mm



personalized and shared tailored brushing technique



insertion of subgingival tip in pocket with a depth of over 5 mm



cleaning the interproximal spaces



## 3.3 CHILD PATIENTS

In paediatric dentistry, the use of glycine powder is preferred to sodium bicarbonate for all procedures, as its reduced particle size makes it less invasive on the delicate anatomy of the deciduous teeth of child patients. The 90° or 120° spray nozzle with glycine powder can be used on all surfaces. This air-polishing operation favours professional hygiene controls as it is quick, effective and well tolerated by the young patients.

#### 3.3.1 CLEANING OCCLUSAL GROOVES BEFORE SEALING

The use of glycine powder is ideal for cleaning occlusal grooves before sealing them to reduce the risk of undermined caries. For this clinical operation, use should be made of the 90° spray nozzle with glycine or bicarbonate powder if in semi-permanent teeth. This operation will certainly be less invasive than selective polishing.

## 3.3.2 REMOVING PLAQUE BEFORE TOPICAL FLUOROPROPHYLAXIS

The tooth can be preserved and made more resistant to acid attacks through the direct application of remineralizing substances after its eruption. For these clinical practices, the tooth surfaces must be carefully cleaned, removing bacterial biofilms and AEP (acquired enamel pellicle).

For deplaquing, prior to fluoroprophylaxis or topical remineralization with other substances, the use of air-polishing with glycine powder provides all the advantages listed above, as well as the possibility of cleaning white spots without removing significant quantities of tissue that will subsequently be fluorized. After cleaning with the powder, the operator can apply gel, mousse, cream, foam and varnish.

In this case, the operator can choose whether to use the 90°or 120° spray nozzle with glycine powder on all surfaces.

# 3.3.3 REMOVING THE PLAQUE DETECTOR AFTER MOTIVATION TECHNIQUES AND/OR PLAQUE INDEX

A patient's motivation to maintain adequate oral hygiene is a fundamental, extremely important aspect to be able to reach oral health objectives, whether it is daily oral hygiene or individuals with mild or serious diseases.

The motivation of the patient by the operator during the initial approach, if it is particularly incisive and easy to learn, will give better result in shortest possible time. Stimulating all the patient's senses will make him/her more aware of its importance. Viewing of the plaque index (PI) is one of the best "conscience effects" that can be given to the patient. Once the PI has been calculated and the motivation phase has been completed, it becomes indispensable to remove the parts of biofilm soaked in erythrosin.

The glycine powder carried by air-polishing is particularly indicated for this type of treatment, both for children and for adults. Its use will effectively eliminate both the erythrosin and the fluorescein-based plaque detector.

The advantages lie in the delicacy with which it cleans the surface and the little time required to remove the plaque from the teeth. Another advantage is that it cleans the mucosa on the neck of the tooth and this cannot be done with bicarbonate or by traditional polishing.

#### CLINICAL CASE



clinical observation



deplaquing posterior area with a 120° spray nozzle and glycine powder





deplaquing with a 90° spray nozzle and glycine powder



deplaquing before sealing



application of fluoride varnish



clean surfaces after deplaquing



home dental hygiene



final result

## 3.4 ORTHODONTIC PATIENTS

Orthodontic patients require special attention in the control of bacterial biofilms. Treatment before, during and after orthodontic treatment must also be personalized.

# 3.4.1 CLEANING THE TOOTH SURFACE PRIOR TO ORTHODONTIC TREATMENT (BEFORE FIXING THE BRACKETS)

It is essential to remove bacterial plaque and stains from the tooth surfaces before putting the orthodontic appliance into place. If the patient comes to the appointment with a good level of oral hygiene, his/her gums will not bleed during polishing or air-polishing. The bicarbonate powder is certainly more abrasive and has a greater cleaning power, but if the patient is prepared correctly by the odontologist and/ or dental hygienist, no invasive procedure will be necessary and deplaquing with glycine powder will be sufficient. The advantage of using glycine powder is the fact that it is gentle on the hard tissues and, above all, on the soft tissues, thus avoiding surface dysepithelization while bicarbonate could, if used incorrectly, cause marginal bleeding.

## 3.4.2 REMOVING PLAQUE DURING TEETH CLEANING SESSIONS

Performing a professional teeth cleaning session on a patient with a fixed orthodontic appliance is not simple and the patient often fails to maintain adequate plaque control because the brackets interfere with the instruments used to remove the plaque and to apply toothpaste (Wilkins EM, 1999).



Supragingival deplaquing on an orthodontic patient



It is not easy for the operator to remove bacterial biofilms from tooth surfaces situated between the attachment and the gum margin, or close to the attachments. The extremely limited spaces create difficulties during the operation in that they are difficult to reach with the instruments. Air-polishing with glycine powder not only removes plaque and any residual materia alba from the attachment and the enamel but, unlike bicarbonate, allows the jet to be directed below the neck of the tooth, thus detoxifying the gum margin with great operating ease and simplifying the operator's work considerably.

This operation is also much more tolerable for the patient in that it is completely painless. It also allows cleaning close to interdental and interpapillary bands and spaces due to the aid of the spray nozzle at 120°.

## 3.5 PATIENTS WITH SYSTEMIC DISEASES (DIABETES, CARDIOVAS-CULAR DISEASE, OBESITY)

Patients with systemic diseases should be monitored frequently for their hygiene control. In these specific cases, glycine powder should be used with the 120° spray nozzle. Before carrying out the clinical air-polishing procedure, remember to pay special attention to patients with cardiovascular diseases that require specific pharmacological therapy.

## 3.6 SMOKERS

The operator will make a careful assessment of whether to use sodium bicarbonate powder on the stubborn stains of smokers.

This kind of patient is likely to have gingival recessions with consequent exposed and stained root surfaces; in this case, adding the use of glycine powder with a 120° spray nozzle in a mixed technique is recommended. If pockets with a depth of over 5 mm are present, the PERIO spray nozzle may be used with the disposable periodontic subgingival tip on the damaged sites.

## 3.7 IMPLANT PATIENTS

The problem that all dentists have always had in treating peri-implantitis without surgery concerns the instruments at their disposal.

Up to now, the clinical protocols for the treatment of pockets on implants indicated the use of plastic and Teflon curettes (Wilkins EM, 1999) or chemical and

pharmacological treatments, such as chlorhexidin in xanthan gel (Genovesi A et al, 2004). In addition, even only cleaning the external neck of the implant or the prosthesis-abutment connection point posed a risk of minor abrasions to the titanium.

#### 3.7.1 REMOVING PLAQUE FROM PROSTHESES ON IMPLANTS

The ease offered by the use of glycine powder for this procedure is unrivalled compared to similar operations.

When glycine powder is used, there is no risk of damaging either the prosthesis or the neck of the implant, and these characteristics are supplemented also by ease of use and speed of execution. It will therefore be possible to direct the jet of glycine powder at both the prosthesis and the implant, with a perfect inclination of the jet emitted, without any risk for either of the structures. The operator will choose the 90° or the 120° spray nozzle according to the type of anatomical structure and type of implant. In clinical cases of gingivitis around the implant tissues, caused by poor home oral hygiene, the use of glycine for removing bacterial plaque and detoxifying hypertrophic tissues offers excellent rapidity and depth of action.

## 3.7.2 IN PERI-IMPLANTITIS

The glycine powder has proven to be an authentic revelation in the treatment of the aforesaid diseases. Having removed the tartar from the exposed surface of the implants using the traditional methods (Teflon or titanium curettes) or using specific ultrasonic tips, further detoxification with subgingival air-polishing guarantees a full recovery from the disease in 8 cases out of 10 (Sarri S et al, 2006).

If there is no tartar on the implant but the peri-implantitis is caused by bacterial plaque, the use of subgingival air-polishing has been found to be effective in healing the active site. For the treatment of peri-implantitis in the presence of pockets with a depth of no more than 5 mm, use should be made of the 120° spray nozzle. The technique and method of use are identical to those used for periodontitis. If the examination with a Teflon probe reveals an involvement with a depth of more than 5 mm, the PERIO spray nozzle with a disposable periodontal subgingival tip should be inserted, holding it always parallel to the pillar of the implant.

In this way, the granulation tissue is removed and the surface of the implant and surrounding tissues are cleaned, reducing the risk of tissue loss.



#### 3.8 POLISHING REMOVABLE PROSTHESES

Glycine powder can also be used with a 90° spray nozzle to polish removable prostheses, having removed any plaque and tartar from them, so as to remove the ugly stains caused by poor oral hygiene and contact with staining substances.

# 4. CONCLUSION

The efficacy of sodium bicarbonate in deplaquing and the elimination of acquired dyschromia had been known for some time now, but the true revolution was the introduction of supra- and subgingival air-polishing using glycine powder.

The COMBI *touch* technology, which enables both powders to be used at the same time due to the use of ergonomic spray nozzles oriented at 90° and 120°, enables the operator to obtain an excellent clinical result, with an advantage in the timing of the procedure much appreciated by patients.

The highly sophisticated supra- and subgingival air-polishing technique enables the operator to perform a complete, effective, minimally invasive and repeatable clinical procedure without interfering with the health of the hard and soft tissues of the oral cavity.

For the therapy to be successful, the operator must adopt a personalized tailor-made approach, shared with the patient, to clinical supra- and subgingival air-polishing practice (Gianna Maria Nardi). In fact, the skill of the operator is of fundamental importance, who must be capable to work only after making an accurate diagnosis and to establish the opportunities for using the subgingival air-polishing technique.

# 5. REFERENCES

Barnes CM. The management of aerosols with airpolishing delivery systems. J Dent Hyg 1991; 65(6): 280-282. Barnes CM, Covey DA, Walker MP, Ross JA. An in vitro evaluation of the effects of aluminum trihydroxide delived via the prophy jet on dental restorative materials. J. Prosthet. Dent. 2004; 13; 1.

Barnes CM, Russell CM, Gerbo LR, Wells BR, Barnes DW. Effects of an air-powder polishing system on orthodontically bracketed and banded teeth. *Am J Orthod Dentofacial Orthop 1990; 97: 74–81.* 

**Bortolaia C, Sbordone L.** I biofilm del cavo orale. Formazione, sviluppo e implicazioni nell'insorgenza delle malattie correlate all'accumulo di placca batterica. *Minerva Stomatologica 2002 Maggio*; 51(5): 187-192.

**Black R.** Technique for nonmechanical preparation of cavities and prophylaxis. J Am Dent Assoc 1945; 32: 955-965.

Burwell AK, Litkowski LJ, Greenspan DC. Calcium Sodium Phospholicate (NovaMin): remineralization potenzia. Adv Dent Res. 2009; 21: 35-39.

Checchi L, Montevecchi M, Moreschi A, Graziosi F, Taddei P, Violante FS. Efficacy of three face masks in preventing inhalation of airborne contaminants in dental practice. J Am Dent Assoc. 2005; 136(7): 877-882.

Cortesi Ardizzone V, Abbinante A. Igienista Orale. Teoria e pratica professionale. Edra 2013; 413.

Dutil S, Meriaux A, de Latremoille MC, Lazure L, Barbeau J, Duchaine C. Measurement of airborne bacteria and endotoxin generated during dental cleaning. J Occup Environ Hyg 2009; 6: 121-130.

Finlayson RS, Stevens FD. Subcutaneous facial emphysema secondary to use of the Cavi-Jet. J Periodontol 1988 May; 59(5): 315-317.

**Gutmann MS, Marker VA, Gutmann JL.** Restoration surface roughness after air-powder polishing. *Am J Dent* 1993; 6: 99-102.

**Galloway SE, Pashley DH.** Rate of removal of root structure by the use of the Prophy-Jet device. *J Periodontol 1987*; *58*: *464-469*.

Genovesi A, Savina C, Nardi G. Manuale pratico per l'igienista dentale. Firenze: Ed. SEE; 2004. Pg. 191 - 200.

Harrel SK, Molinari J. Aerosols and splatter in dentistry: a brief review of the literature and infection control implications. J Am Dent Assoc 2004 April; 135; 429-437.

Hashino E, Kuboniwa M, Alghamdi SA,Yamaguchi M, Yamamoto R, Cho H, Amano A. Erythritol alters microstructure and metabolomic profiles of biofilm composed of Streptococcus gordonii and Porphyromonas gingivalis. *Mol Oral Microbiol 2013: 435-451* 

Horning GM, Cobb CM, Killoy WJ. Effect of an air-powder abrasive system on root surfaces in periodontal surgery. J Clin Periodontol 1987; 144: 213-220.

Jost-Brinkmann PG. The influence of air polishers on tooth enamel. An in-vitro study. J Orofac Orthop 1998; 59: 1-16.

Kontturi-Narhi V, Markkanen S, Markkanen H. Effects of airpolishing on dental plaque removal and hard tissues as evaluated by scanning electron microscopy. *J Periodontol* 1990; 61: 334–338.

**Kovacevic R.** Monitoring the depth of abrasive waterjet penetration. *Int J Mach Tools and Manuf 1992; 32:* 725–736.

**Kozlovsky A, Soldinger M, Sperling I.** The effectiness of the air powder abrasive device on the tooth and periodontium: an overview. *Clin Prev Dent 1989; 114; 7-11.* 

La Rousse Enciclopedia Rizzoli. Enciclopedia universale 1964; 17: 242.

Löe H, Theilade E, Jensen SB. Experimental gingivitis in man. J. Periodontol 1965; 36; 177.

Momber A. Blast Cleaning Technology. Springer-Verlag: Berlin Heidelberg 2008.



Momber A, Kovacevic R. Principles of abrasive water jet machining. London: Springer; 1998.

**Nardi GM et al.** No compliance ma concordance tecnica di spazzolamento tailoring personalizzata e condivisa. *Minerva Stomatologica 2014; 63(1-4): 557.* 

Narongdej T, Sakoolnamarka, R, Boonroung T. The effectiveness of a calcium sodium phosphosilicate desensitizer in reducing cervical dentin hypersensitivity. A pilot study. *JADA 2010; 141: 995-999.* 

**Petersilka GJ.** Subgingival air-polishing in the treatment of periodontal biofilm infections. *Periodontology* 2000, 2011; 55; 124-142.

Petersilka GP, Bell M, Häberlin I, Mehl A, Hickel R, Flemming TF. In vitro evaluation of novel low abrasive air polishing powders. J Clin Period 2003; 30: 9-13.

Petersilka GJ, Bell M, Mehl A, Hickel R, Flemmig TF. Root defects following air polishing. J Clin Periodontol 2003; 30; 165–170.

Petersilka G, Panitz W, Weresch R, Eichinger M, Kern U. Air emphysema in periodontal therapy. A case series with critical literature overview. *Parodontologie 2010; 21; 165–175*.

Orton GS. Clinical use of an air-powder abrasive system. Dent Hyg 1987; 61; 513.

Sarri S, Bontà G, Boldi M, Rossini M, Nardi G. Risultati dell'utilizzo della glicina su impianti con sondaggio. Implantologia dentale e parodontologia 2006; 14(4): 168-170.

**Schiffner U.** Die Einwirkung eines abrasiven Pulverstrahles aufartifiziell demineralisierten schmelz. *Dtsch Zahna rztl Z 1992; 47: 778–781.* 

Sculean A, Hägi T, Hofmänner P, Eick S, Salvi E, Ramseier C. Evaluation of a new polishing powder in supportive periodontal therapy. International Association for Dental Research (IADR), 2013 March.

Weaks LM, Lescher NB, Barnes CM, Holroyd SV. Clinical Evaluation of the prophy-jet as an instrument for routine removal of tooth stain and plaque. J. Periodontol 1984; 55; 486.

**Weber LW, Seidel HJ.** Zusammenfassung der Befunde über die Morphologie der prophypearls, ihre Anwendung auf Dentin und Schmelz, die Inhaltsstoffe vor und nach Anwendung auf Oberflächen. *Institut für Arbeits-, Sozial- und Umweltmedizin: Ulm (Germany); 2003.* 

Wilkins EM. La pratica clinica dell'igienista dentale. Padova: Piccin Ed. 1999. Pg. 439 – 466 – 683 - 715.

Worrall SF, Knibbs PJ, Glenwright HD. Methods of reducing bacterial contamination of the atmosphere arising from use of an air-polisher. Br Dent J 1987; 163(4): 118-119.

mectron s.p.a., via Loreto 15/A, 16042 Carasco (Ge), Italy, tel +39 0185 35361, fax +39 0185 351374

#### ------> www.mectron.com or mectron@mectron.com

© Copyright mectron S.p.A., Carasco, Italy All rights reserved. Texts, pictures and graphics of mectron brochures are protected by copyright and other protection laws. Without written approval of mectron S.p.A. the contents may not be copied, distributed, changed or made available to third parties for commercial purposes.